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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to the divestiture of state investment funds in certain companies liable to sanctions
under the Iran Sanctions Act of 1996; and to provide an expiration date.

Minutes: Testimony 1,2, 3,4,5

Chairman Kasper opened the hearing on HB 1304.
Rep Grande introduced the bill.

Steve Hunegs, Executive Director of the Jewish Community Relations Council of
Minnesota and The Dakotas (05:55) testified in support of the bill (Testimony 5).

Rep Zaiser: Is this divestiture part of the U.S. sanctions on Iran?

Hunegs: The United States, going back to 1995, has supported sanctions. The reason the
legislation is so specific about companies spending $20 million in investing in Iran's energy
sector is because that's what Congress set out in 1996. American companies can't directly
do business with Iran, but foreign companies can and they are subjected to sanction from
the U.S. government. That became the framework for the legislation for the states.

Rep Mooney: What is the association from your organization and to North Dakota's
investments?

Hunegs: We have made it a goal of supporting, in coalition with other groups, this
legislation. | have a deep relationship with the MN National Guard. Part of my support for
this legislation is hearing about the threats that Iranian roadside bombs or bombs with
Iranian components are presented to our MN National Guard in Iraq.

Chairman: If this bill were to pass, could you give us an overview of what would happen
with the investment funds with the divestiture? What is the concept?

Hunegs: The state investment board identifies the companies that would be subject to the
divestment. Congress was concerned about due process and wanted to give companies a



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
HB 1304

February 7, 2013
Page 2

chance to respond. If a company doesn't change its business practices with respect to
Iran, the state board of investment then has to sell the stock. It is a fairly long process.

Chairman: Are there 24 other states that have already done this?

Hunegs: There are 24 states that have either passed it or now have an investment policy
against investing in Iran. Some of those states are at different stages in the divestment.

Sparb Collins, Executive Director of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement
System (21:54) testified in opposition of the bill (Testimony 1).

Rep Zaiser: How long has it been since there has been a request such as we are hearing
today?

Collins: It has been awhile. This comes in a form of a bill, but there have been other types
of requests that have been discussed.

Chairman: Does your amendment put a step in front of the bill and provide the board the
opportunity to do its due diligence investigate and make a determination of the result of
divestiture of your holdings that might qualify?

Collins: Essentially that is correct. The exclusive benefit rule is in law. That process has
to be used. This bill would potentially override that. The amendment just maintains it.

Chairman: It maintains the exclusive benefit rule. Does it give you process to investigate
whether or not the divestiture would not violate the exclusive benefit rule?

Collins: Yes

Fay Kopp, Interim Executive Director - Chief Retirement Officer, ND Retirement and
Investment Office - ND Teachers' Fund for Retirement (30:54) appeared in opposition of
the bill (Testimony 2).

Chairman: If the amendment, suggested by Sparb, were adopted on the bill, would that
solve your concern on number one?

Kopp: Yes.

Chairman: What percentage of the assets of the TFFR fund are traded or turned over on
an annual basis?

Kopp: | don't know.

Chairman: The fund managers buying and selling the invested assets all the time based
upon doing their fiduciary responsibility. Would it be possible to find out, both from the
PERS and TFFR perspective, a percentage turnover of your invested assets and an
average percentage turnover on an annual basis?
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Kopp: Darren from the State Investment Board may have that information.

Chairman: In regards to number 3, in order for any slippery slope to be jumped on, it
would take legislative action just like this bill, correct?

Kopp: Yes.
Kelly Schmidt, State Treasurer (37:04) testified in opposition to the bill (Testimony 3).

Chairman: You heard testimony that there are 24 states that have taken some action like
this. Are you aware of any litigation in any of those states as a result of any type of a
divestiture action any place in the country?

Schmidt: At this time | am not aware of any litigation.

Chairman: When the state of ND and any of the fund board who oversees our investment
philosophies, do you establish the priorities and the goals and objectives of the funds?

Schmidt: In the State Investment Board, those are determined by our clients. And would
include the TFFR board and the PERS board.

Chairman: There is a board that establishes the investment philosophy and the goals and
guidelines of the funds.

Schmidt: Each board has their own philosophy

Chairman: If this bill were passed, the board of a fund could say their goal is to meet what
the bill says and not violate our prudent person investment rule. That is then handed to the
money managers, who are all over the country. If they are given an investment philosophy
and guideline with which to follow which would be divestiture if it would not violate the
ability for the fund to make money according to their decision, would you not then be
passing that decision making process on to the people you've hired to manage the money
in the first place?

Schmidt: | would say we would not. As a fiduciary of that fund, it is the responsibility of
the fiduciaries, not us passing it on to our money managers. There are times when we
make investment decisions. What if our money managers did miss something?

Chairman: You're implying that when you set your investment philosophy and you hand it
off to money manager A, they need to manage the dollars that are under their prerogative
according to the investment philosophy that you gave them. So your fiduciary responsibility
is to watch to make sure they are managing the money that way, do you have a liability that
if they mismanage the money, you are now responsible. Or is it the responsibility of the
people you gave the directive to?

Schmidt: It would be their responsibility as it would be related to the mandate. We don't
give a philosophy to a money manager; we give a mandate.
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Chairman: So when the mandate is given to the money manager, there is a fiduciary
responsibility that they enter into?

Schmidt: Yes.

Chairman: So the job of the people who gave the mandate to the fiduciary who manages
the money is to oversee that they are doing their job according to the mandate that you
gave to them?

Schmidt: Yes.
Chairman: If you determine they are not meeting that mandate, they could be fired?
Schmidt: Yes.

Darren Schulz, Interim Chief Investment Officer for the North Dakota Retirement and
Investment Office and State Investment Board (50:40) testified neutrally (Testimony 4).

Rep Steiner: Would there be less cost if we didn't require immediate action? If we said
rolling into future we will implement this. How would you that you don't invest in any Iranian
companies if you haven't done your research yet?

Schulz: We do not invest in companies that are domiciled in Iran or state government
bonds. If this were applied prospectively and not to existing holdings, the way | understand
the bill, it would require divestiture based on current and prospective holdings.

Chairman: If the bill were changed to say it applied to future investment policy, you would
be given the mandate to follow this investment course.

Schulz: If the bill were to apply prospectively and not to existing holdings, it may mitigate
some of the transaction cost. However, it would alleviate any of the administrative burdens
that would be incurred. This will require additional staff and resources.

Rep Louser: If the fiduciary duty is to maximize returns, why on page 2 do we have
economically targeted investments; investments selected for collateral economic benefit
apart from the return?

Schulz: Our clients' investment policy statements prohibit economically targeted investing,
unless it meets the exclusive benefit rule. Essentially we're not going to sacrifice return in
order to achieve a collateral economic benefit.

Rep Louser: Is there an investment that the SIB would not make, if the returns were
attractive?

Schulz: We do not impose restrictions on our managers. Our goal is to maximize
investment return on behalf of all of our clients.
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Rep Rohr: Have you had a chance to visit with anybody in any of the 24 states that have a
similar law, in terms of the impact that they've incurred based on this law?

Schulz: I've reached out directly to Ohio. One of our staff polled a national association of
state investment officer group seeking feedback. Much of my testimony is modeled on
input from these other states.

Rep Mooney: On the fiscal note, underneath the state's obligations, why does only the city
have a cost and not the county?

Schulz: | was told that is for Bismarck, Fargo and Grand Forks clients that we have.

Chairman: Is the assumption that there are scrutinized companies out there and that you
may be forced to sell various holdings?

Schulz: Yes, | am making the assumption that there may be companies on the scrutinized
companies list that may not cease business activities should there be determined exposure
to lran.

Chairman: But at this time, you don't know for sure if there is even one holding out there?

Schulz: In my research, | have observed estimates provided by other state plans as far as
the potential exposure. The administrative costs reflect these estimates. We simply don't
know until we hire a research service.

Chairman: How do you pay your money managers?

Schulz: Most of our managers who would be affected by this bill would be equity
managers. Most of our equity manager mandates are an asset based fee. A few have a
base fee and a performance fee.

Chairman: So there is no individual transaction fee?

Schulz: Transaction costs are bomn by our SIB clients. That impact will be felt. | estimated
the transaction estimate based on estimates provided by Ohio, Florida and one other state
fund. Given that the transactions would occur primarily in international equity markets,
those markets have a higher trading cost. I'm estimating the cost of selling a position and
finding a substitute position. It would cost about 0.9%; 90 basis points. That is born by our
clients.

Chairman: Could you get the past three or four years of performance information on a
calendar basis for the annual returns on the various funds?

Schulz: Continued testimony (1:09:35).

Chairman: If Sparb's amendment were adopted, would that solve your last problem under
the fiduciary implications?
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Schulz: It would clarify that the exclusive benefit rule would supersede any pressure to
invest for social or any other reasons. That is an important consideration. | struggle with
the burden of determining what meets that rule. This bill would require us to make case by
case determinations and perform investment analysis on a company by company basis. |
see a very onerous fiduciary responsibility. I'm concerned on the impact on the staff.

Rep Boehning: Isn't there a list of these corporations out there already from the 24 states
that are already doing this?

Schulz: There is no master list. Each state has various provisions to their bills. There is
no commonality.

Chairman closed the hearing.
Rep Koppelman moved to adopt the amendment proposed by Sparb Collins.
Rep Louser seconded.

Voice vote: Motion carried.
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Explanation or reason ém“ntroduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to the divestiture of state investment funds in certain companies liable to sanctions
under the Iran Sanctions Act of 1996; and to provide an expiration date.

Minutes: Attachment 1

Chairman Kasper: Apprised committee of an e-mail he received from someone who had
testified, thanking the committee for the opportunity to be heard and for the fairness of the
hearing. Reminded committee of fiscal note of $2.5 million. Summarized main concept of
bill. Opened committee discussion on HB 1304.

1:25 Rep. Laning: | feel the theory behind this is good, but after hearing the testimony,
there is too much involved in this to pursue it further. It has a lot of impact to employee
retirement funds. Itis not as simple as it looks at first.

2:21 Rep. Laning made a motion for a Do Not Pass.
Rep. Paur seconded the motion.

2:49 Rep. Boehning: Yesterday we approved the amendment thatwas on the back of the
testimony from Sparb Collins. Is that part of this motion?

Chairman Kasper confers with committee clerk regarding the voice vote to adopt the
amendment on the prior day.

3:30 Chairman Kasper: So we need to change the motion to reflect that the bill has been
amended. Would the motioner and seconder agree to that.

Rep. Laning and Rep Paur agree to amend the motion so that it is now a motion for a Do
Not Pass as Amended.

3:48 Rep. Boehning: As we heard in testimony, there are twenty-four states that have
this in place already. | think it is good legislation, and | think it overblew how much it will
cost. | don't think it will be overly burdensome. It will be tough, and | think the fiscal note
was out of whack. | am going to vote against the do not pass.
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4:48 Rep. Rohr: In the testimony yesterday, they kept referring to the client. That is the
client body at large. | bet that if the clients at large were informed that they were investing
in Iranian companies, | think they would be able to give an informed opinion.

5:14 Rep. Mooney: | take great stock in the people we hire as experts. We heard from all
of our state experts about the complexities of moving forward with this and the volatility of
this. | would be absolutely against us moving forward with this. | think they do what they
can within the federal mandate to do their due diligence through that process.

6:04 Rep. Paur: | don't believe the funds are presently investing in Iranian companies. |
believe those twenty-four states are considering legislation, not that they have legislation.

7:09 Rep. Strinden: The price tag is too large for me for a largely symbolic bill. In
principle, | agree with not investing in Iran. But | am not sure how much money is going
there. I'd rather spend the money this would cost on education or something that will stay
in our state. I'm not sure if | would be willing to spend extra money in my own IRA and
401K to divest from Iran. | cannot vote to have the state to that with their funds.

7:46 Rep. Louser: (audio faint) The experts who testified and have fiduciary
responsibilities said their job is to maximize returns. | asked them that if the return is
attractive regardless of the investment, do we invest in it, and | didn't hear an answer. My
question is, do we have last year's returns on ____ (audio faint). Were they not around 0%
for investments?

8:26 Several individuals talk together to locate the information. See Attachment 1.

8:55 Chairman Kasper: If we look at PERS, PERS had a 13.55% return in 2012. In
2011, it was -0.72%. In 2010, 12.6%. In 2009, 15.5%. There is the big decline in 2008,
when the market dove substantially. The fact of the matter is that when money managers
manage accounts, they are cognizant of their fiduciary responsibility to try to protect the
assets. If they are seeing placed in the world where there could be potential problems,
they certainly can sell out of that position. They may sell out of that position. The
implication was that you might take a loss when you sell out of a position. Money
managers do that every day. They don't sit on the funds; they have a strategy for buying
into a new position. | don't think there are any transaction fees in big accounts like that.
The money managers are paid a percentage of assets under management.

11:57 Rep. Dockter: You had asked about the percentage of turnover of assets. That is
already built in. If we would pass this bill, | don't think the cost would be there because it is
already built in. If they would have to sell out of some holdings, that is just the nature of
having that much money. Their goal is to maximum returns. The benchmark is the S&P
500. We're not even hitting that when you look at our returns. Even though our returns
look good, they should be higher to meet the benchmark. This fiscal note is way out of line.
The fees are already built in. They did not ask the question yesterday because, | believe,
they know what the answer us.
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13:20 Rep. Louser: (audio faint) | would like to get the interim committee's report. If |
recall, the returns for three quarters were 0%, and now we're seeing an annual return of
13%.

13:41 Chairman Kasper: They are on different reporting cycles. If the returns should be
better than what they are, it might not hurt to get out of the Iranian investments, if any.

14:09 Rep. Mooney: If we're going to look at is seriously for one issue, Iran, then every
two years are we going to go down the road of questioning whether we invest certain
things. There is a long list of items which would be socially unacceptable for any number of
reasons. | question the wisdom of going down that path and superseding the experts who
are telling us this is a bad idea.

14:55 Rep. Dockter: | would disagree. Iran is a matter of national security. | don' think
we should have any investments which help their economy in any way.

15:20 Rep. Rohr: (audio faint)

15:41 Rep. Mooney: | understand that. My point is that every two years, we're going to
have a series of organizations and special interest groups and people who are going to be
asking us to consider legislation on our investments based on social issue or foreign
politics.

16:16 Chairman Kasper: | understand your concern. However, we have no way of
knowing what the next session will bring. It's our responsibility to listen to each bill on its
own merits. We are not experts in money managing, but hopefully we are experts in setting
public policy.

16:52 Rep. B. Koppelman: Called the question.

Roll call vote on the motion for a Do Not Pass as Amended. Motion fails.
Yes =6
No=7
Absent = 1

18:08 Rep. Boehning: Made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended and Referred to
Appropriations.

Rep. Rohr: Seconded.

Roll call vote on the motion for a Do Pass as Amended. Motion passes.
Yes =8
No=5
Absent = 1

Carrier: Rep. Dockter



FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/01/2013
Revised
Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1304

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $0 $0 Lo $0 $0 ' $0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 ) $0 $2,203,553 $0 $321,846
Appropriations $0 $0 . $0 $283,553 $0 $300,846

subdivision.
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
Counties $0( . $0 $0
Cities $0| - $55,000 $8,050
School Districts $0 $0 $0
Townships : $0 $0 $0

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

In order to comply with the Ianguage in HB1304, the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise
in identifying these companies and internal staff resources to perform the on-going analysis and reporting at both the
board and legislative levels.

. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description.of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

HB1304 would require the State Investment Board (SIB) to follow specific procedures for identifying, analyzing,
engaging, monitoring and divesting in companies subject or liable to sanctions. In order to identify these companies,
the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise in this area. The estimated cost of this type of
consulting relationship is $10,000+ per year. Per NDCC 21-10-06.2, this expenditure would fall under continuing
appropriation authority. Additionally, once the companies are identified, internal staff time would be required to
provide analysis of the companies reported by the consultant to the SIB, engage these companies directly, monitor
and analyze the responses received from these companies, provide reports to the SIB and legislative management,
and supervise the divestment process to ensure transaction costs are minimized. Based on information received
from other states’ investment offices, it is estimated that up to 25% of an FTE's time would be required to ensure
compliance with this bill. The SIB has recently discussed the anticipated need for additional staff for the investment
program at RIO. Testimony provided on HB1022 (RIO budget bill) to the House Appropriations-Government
Operations Committee on January 16, 2013, included discussion regarding this anticipated need in the near future,
based on the significant growth of the Legacy Fund in addition to the overall growth of the assets under
management (AUM) of the SIB. The SIB program appropriation request currently funds 5.75 FTEs responsible for
current AUM of just over $6 billion. Estimates indicate AUM to be over $8 billion by the end of the 2013-15 biennium.
RIO did not request an additional FTE in the budget request in HB1022, preferring to wait until the vacant Executive
Director/CIO position is filled, but if HB1304 were passéd, the current 5.75 FTEs would not have the capacity to
absorb the additional responsibilities as described. Unfortunately, the requirements within HB1304 to meet certain
deadlines would not provide the luxury of waiting to assess staffing needs until that time. RIO would therefore
request an additional FTE to provide the necessary staff to properly implement HB1304 as well as to provide
support for the anticipated growth in AUM over the next biennium. Estimated salary and benefits for this position are
$265,400 for the 2015-17 biennium and $291,500 for the 2015-17 biennium. Estimated additional operating
expenses for this position are approximately $18,200 for the 2015-17 biennium and $9,300 for the 2015-17
biennium. Additional costs: There are no pre-established screening criteria or industry lists that fully comply with this



bill's language. The development of a customized analysis was not possible within the timelines established for this
fiscal note’s completion, so RIO relied upon a survey of other state retirement plans that restrict investment in
companies with Iranian ties with exceptions for humanitarian providers. Accordingly, additional companies could
meet the parameters set forth in this bill. Transactions costs of divestment cannot be estimated with precision given
the uncertainty surrounding divestment activity needed to comply with HB 1304. Most SIB clients invest a large
portion of their assets in equity markets, and in international securities, which would likely be most impacted by the
divestment bill. Based on a survey of other state retirement plans, approximately 7.5% of the public equity portfolio
and 1% of the fixed income portfolio may be subject to divestment. Using a midpoint of transaction costs provided
by California, Florida and Ohio pension officials, the transaction:costs for selling the scrutinized companies and
purchasing replacement securities is estimated to be $1.9 million.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

While the variety of provisions in the divestment bills among various retirement systems make developing a rule of
thumb nearly impossible, estimates of lost mvestment earnings range from no lmpact to approximately 30 basis
points per annum.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, foreach agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300; 846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321,846 :

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide détail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts.shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300,846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321 846
Name: Connie Flanagan

Agency: Retirement and Investment s

Telephone: 328-9892

Date Prepared: 02/06/2013



Fiscal Impact of HB 1304
Department 190/Fund 207

Outside Consulting Services

Salary (1 additional FTE)
Benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits Appropriation

Operating

Telecom

ITD Data Processing

Travel

Software

Professional Development
Operating Fees (advertising)
Office Supplies

IT Equipment <$5000

Other Equipment <$5000
Total Operating Appropriation

'
o

Total Appropriated Expenditures Dept. 190/Fund 207
Total Continuing Appropriation Expenditures

Total Expenditures

.

Est. investment transaction costs related to divestiture

2013-15

2015-17

Biennium Biennium
20,000.00 . 21,000.00
205,000.00 226,012.50
60,395.87 65,543.63
265,395.87 291,556.13
960.00 988.80
2,547.00 2,651.22
. 4,000.00 4,200.00

600.00 .
1,000.00 1,000.00
300.00 300.00
150.00 150.00

2,650.00 -

5,950.00 -
18,157.00 9,290.02
283,552.87 300,846.15
20,000.00 21,000.00
303,552.87 321,846.15

1,900,000.00
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February 8, 2013

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1304
Page 4, after line 19, insert:

"21-13-10. Divestment of public employee retirement funds.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the state investment board shall
apply the exclusive benefit rule in investing any public employees retirement system
fund created by the laws of this state. The state investment board is not required to
engage a scrutinized company under section 21-13-02 or proceed with divestment
under section 21-13-03 if the board determines doing so would violate the exclusive
benefit ruie."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_25_005
February 11, 2013 10:19am Carrier: Dockter
insert LC: 13.0352.01002 Title: 02000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1304: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Kasper, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (8 YEAS,
5 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1304 was placed on the Sixth order on
the calendar.

Page 4, after line 19, insert:

"21-13-10. Divestment of public employee retirement funds.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the state investment board shall
apply the exclusive benefit rule in investing any public employees retirement system
fund created by the laws of this state. The state investment board is not required to
engage a scrutinized company under section 21-13-02 or proceed with divestment
under section 21-13-03 if the board determines doing so would violate the exclusive
benefit rule."

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_25_005
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House Appropriations Committee
Roughrider Room, State Capitol

HB 1304
2/14/13
Job 18987 and 19010

[] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature M T W

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivision a of subsection 2 of section 54-03-20
of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to lodging reimbursement for legislators
attending legislative sessions; to provide for retroactive application; and to declare an
emergency.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Recording job 18987
Rep. Jim Kasper, District 46: Introduced the bill.

03:05
Chairman Delzer: Did you ask RIO about what they ask of their money managers when
they change investments currently?

Rep. Kasper: | have a series 7 securities license, so | know a little about this. When an
investment board has dollars to manage, they will set an investment policy. You can have
multiple objectives. The money managers they select will manage the dollars that is their
share of the pot according to the investment objectives of the board.

Chairman Delzer: If the board said you didn't want money invested in a coal company,
e.g., they would simply tell them to do that.

Rep. Kasper: Correct, it is the money manager's job to do that. Where will be the cost to
make the change? | couldn't get a straight answer. Generally it is a percentage of assets
under management, there are not fees charged for different transactions.

Chairman Delzer: They must do some sort of scrutinizing of their investments before they
make them.

Rep. Kasper: Yes. They do all kinds of research and due diligence before they make their
investment choices. | think the FN is ridiculous, but the truth is in the pudding.
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Rep. Skarphol: The state department on a federal level has a list of individuals and
corporations that are not allowed to do business in the US. Did your committee have any
discussion about utilizing that list as well as specifically naming a country?

06:55

Rep. Kasper: When we asked, it was difficult to get a straightforward answer. | believe
you're right. To me it's not hard; the question is, do the people who manage the money
want to make the effort to follow the legislative body's desire for how our dollars are
invested? That's a policy decision we have the opportunity to make.

Rep. Grande: | did look at various forms of sanctions online; Iran was the only one that
came up as far as divestiture. MN, SD, CA, IN, FL, to begin the list, have all done this and
have not run into the financial issues that were brought up by our investment board. | asked
if they had an issue with the timelines in here, but they said they would work with it. I'm not
sure they understood that aspect of it. The investment board is aware of the timeline
issues, and | would like them to address it if it's an issue for them.

Rep. Glassheim: | got a letter from somebody pushing this saying 3,4,5 other states have
passed this and they must already have lists.

Chairman Delzer: We can discuss this further later. Further questions for Rep. Kasper?
Thank you. The committee continued on to the next bill.

Recording job 19010

Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion or desire for more information on this bill?

Rep. Pollert: Isn't there federal law about this already?

Chairman Delzer: | don't know that federal law would tell us we have to do it, but federal
investments could be affected.

Rep. Grande moved Do Pass, seconded by Rep. Thoreson, and added that she has the
divestiture sheets that state the federal government would like each state to divest.

Chairman Delzer: Discussion?

Rep. Sanford: The timeline for the divestiture, I'm not sure | understand it. What I'm seeing
is 15 months, on page 3. If it was a 15 month time frame, | would think it would be ample
time.

Chairman Delzer: | would guess it is whenever they come up for reissuance that they
would be scrutinized before they reinvest the money.

Rep. Grande: That's correct, they give them a time frame and it is fairly open ended to that
point, to prevent forcing turnovers. There's only 5% that's really in international investment,
it's a very small piece within the funds.
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Rep. Monson: So we do have investments in ND in there? If we have any investments, it
will cost us nothing. If we have investments in a mutual fund, that might have something in.

Rep. Grande: Exactly. We do not know if we do. | don't think we are, but we are in some
really large funds. They would need to pull that back.

Chairman Delzer: There is quite a list of funds that RIO invests.
Rep. Skarphol: | don't see anything in here about a penalty for noncompliance.

Chairman Delzer: The expiration says if this country ever goes off of that list, there is no
more divestiture.

Rep. Sanford: The reason | am asking about the 15 months is international investments
would probably be obvious, but you could have companies domiciled here that still have
relationships with Iran. That's what would take time to check and do the divestiture.

Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? Seeing none, a roll call vote was done. The motion
carried 20 Yes, 2 No, 0 Absent. Rep. Thoreson will be our carrier, and we'll return it to the
policy committee carrier, Rep. Dockter.



FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/01/2013

Revised
Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1304

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $0 $0 Lo $0 $0 ' $0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 ) $0 $2,203,553 $0 $321,846
Appropriations $0 $0 . $0 $283,553 $0 $300,846

subdivision.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
Counties $0( . $0 $0
Cities $0| - $55,000 $8,050
School Districts $0 $0 $0
Townships : $0 $0 $0

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

In order to comply with the |anguage in HB1304, the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise
in identifying these companies and internal staff resources to perform the on-going analysis and reporting at both the
board and legislative levels.

. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description.of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

HB1304 would require the State Investment Board (SIB) to follow specific procedures for identifying, analyzing,
engaging, monitoring and divesting in companies subject or liable to sanctions. In order to identify these companies,
the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise in this area. The estimated cost of this type of
consulting relationship is $10,000+ per year. Per NDCC 21-10-06.2, this expenditure would fall under continuing
appropriation authority. Additionally, once the companies are identified, internal staff time would be required to
provide analysis of the companies reported by the consultant to the SIB, engage these companies directly, monitor
and analyze the responses received from these companies, provide reports to the SIB and legislative management,
and supervise the divestment process to ensure transaction costs are minimized. Based on information received
from other states’ investment offices, it is estimated that up to 25% of an FTE's time would be required to ensure
compliance with this bill. The SIB has recently discussed the anticipated need for additional staff for the investment
program at RIO. Testimony provided on HB1022 (RIO budget bill) to the House Appropriations-Government
Operations Committee on January 16, 2013, included discussion regarding this anticipated need in the near future,
based on the significant growth of the Legacy Fund in addition to the overall growth of the assets under
management (AUM) of the SIB. The SIB program appropriation request currently funds 5.75 FTEs responsible for
current AUM of just over $6 billion. Estimates indicate AUM to be over $8 billion by the end of the 2013-15 biennium.
RIO did not request an additional FTE in the budget request in HB1022, preferring to wait until the vacant Executive
Director/CIO position is filled, but if HB1304 were passed, the current 5.75 FTEs would not have the capacity to
absorb the additional responsibilities as described. Unfortunately, the requirements within HB1304 to meet certain
deadlines would not provide the luxury of waiting to assess staffing needs until that time. RIO would therefore
request an additional FTE to provide the necessary staff to properly implement HB1304 as well as to provide
support for the anticipated growth in AUM over the next biennium. Estimated salary and benefits for this position are
$265,400 for the 2015-17 biennium and $291,500 for the 2015-17 biennium. Estimated additional operating
expenses for this position are approximately $18,200 for the 2015-17 biennium and $9,300 for the 2015-17
biennium. Additional costs: There are no pre-established screening criteria or industry lists that fully comply with this



bill's language. The development of a customized analysis was not possible within the timelines established for this
fiscal note’s completion, so RIO relied upon a survey of other state retirement plans that restrict investment in
companies with Iranian ties with exceptions for humanitarian providers. Accordingly, additional companies could
meet the parameters set forth in this bill. Transactions costs of divestment cannot be estimated with precision given
the uncertainty surrounding divestment activity needed to comply with HB 1304. Most SIB clients invest a large
portion of their assets in equity markets, and in international securities, which would likely be most impacted by the
divestment bill. Based on a survey of other state retirement plans, approximately 7.5% of the public equity portfolio
and 1% of the fixed income portfolio may be subject to divestment. Using a midpoint of transaction costs provided
by California, Florida and Ohio pension officials, the transaction:costs for selling the scrutinized companies and
purchasing replacement securities is estimated to be $1.9 million.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

While the variety of provisions in the divestment bills among various retirement systems make developing a rule of
thumb nearly impossible, estimates of lost mvestment earnings range from no lmpact to approximately 30 basis
points per annum.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, foreach agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300; 846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321,846 :

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide détail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts.shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300,846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321 846
Name: Connie Flanagan

Agency: Retirement and Investment s

Telephone: 328-9892

Date Prepared: 02/06/2013



Fiscal Impact of HB 1304
Department 190/Fund 207

Outside Consulting Services

Salary (1 additional FTE)
Benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits Appropriation

Operating

Telecom

ITD Data Processing

Travel

Software

Professional Development
Operating Fees (advertising)
Office Supplies

IT Equipment <$5000

Other Equipment <$5000
Total Operating Appropriation

'
o

Total Appropriated Expenditures Dept. 190/Fund 207
Total Continuing Appropriation Expenditures

Total Expenditures

.

Est. investment transaction costs related to divestiture

2013-15

2015-17

Biennium Biennium
20,000.00 . 21,000.00
205,000.00 226,012.50
60,395.87 65,543.63
265,395.87 291,556.13
960.00 988.80
2,547.00 2,651.22
. 4,000.00 4,200.00

600.00 .
1,000.00 1,000.00
300.00 300.00
150.00 150.00

2,650.00 -

5,950.00 -
18,157.00 9,290.02
283,552.87 300,846.15
20,000.00 21,000.00
303,552.87 321,846.15

1,900,000.00
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_29_009
February 15, 2013 8:08am Carrier: Thoreson

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1304, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep.Delzer, Chairman)
recommends DO PASS (20 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed HB 1304 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_29_009
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Missouri River Room, State Capitol

HB 1304
03/07/2013
Job Number 19544

[ ] Conference Committee

2 4
Committee Clerk Signat / : // '
mmittee Clerk Signature //ﬂ{,/,C/ /W\
| v J
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act relating to the divestiture of state investment funds in certain companies liable to
sanctions under the Iran Sanctions Act of 1996; and to provide an expiration date.

Minutes:

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on HB 1304.

Representative Bette Grande, District 41: Testified as sponsor and in support of the bill,
and explained the bill. This is as a result of the federal government asking us to divest from
Iran. The federal government declared and asked that each state take upon these
sanctions. This is put in place for one way of trying to peacefully explain to the nation of
Iran that we will not have dealings with them as then develop nuclear powers that would be
used against us and other entities. This is taking place in many other states. | am hoping
that each of you received an e-mail from Steve Huggins (Spelling?). He is an expert in this
area. He has worked in multiple states across the nation on this issue and he is with the
Jewish Council Relations Committee. He is very good at explaining a great deal of this bill
to you. | wantto point out that throughout this you are going to hear various things about
how this will take place and what you need to understand for those that have not spent a lot
of time in employee benefits committee, our investment board is basically managers of
money managers. We don’'t physically touch the money here. We ask the managers to

handle the money for us when we do the investments inside things. There are directives
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that are given from our advisement boards but yet we do not touch that money because we
hand it to the money managers. In that the directives would go from our boards to the
managers and request to divest from particular areas. This bill lays out a time frame as to
how this is to take place, who and how things are notified, and what type of exemptions are
in place. |think it is important to realize that we do have on page 3, exemptions in the fact
that we are certainly not doing this to be punitive to the people of Iran. This is a
governmental issue back and forth and that we would continue in our relief of human
suffering for Iranian people, promotion of health education, and various freedoms that are
needed for the people. This is to face the problems that the government is causing around
the world with their nuclear developments.

(4:55) Chairman Dever: Is it easy to identify companies that should be divested?
Representative Grande: From what | understand, the federal government has their list
and that comes in that second smaller packet. All the other states that have participated in
this have been able to do so. | have spoken with other money managers groups that
worked with the Minnesota side on this and they were able to receive those lists. It is the
responsibility of the money managers to know what and how they are investing things.
They should come forth as a part of their job to do this. These larger companies should
have that at their fingertips for us.

Chairman Dever: | recall in an employee benefits committee meeting that you asked a
question about to what extent we might be invested in companies that deal with Iran but |
don’t recall the response.

Representative Grande: They did not have an answer at that time.

Chairman Dever: Do we have any idea now?
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Representative Grande: | would hope they would have figured that out by now since this
has been on the table for a couple of months. As we heard this on the other side, there was
great discussion on the fiscal note and the discussion on that. | have asked them to
continue to look into this because the fiscal note does not seem to compare to what other
states have come up with. | don’t know if there is a misunderstanding of what the
expectation is or not clearly speaking to the money managers that they are managing that it
would be their role to take and do this - not the role of our department to do that.

Chairman Dever: Is it safe for me to assume that sanctions right now would prevent
directly investing in Iranian companies, but the concern here is with the businesses that do
business in Iran?

Representative Grande: You are looking at direct holdings in here and these have been
earmarked and noted in the money managing companies. With that, the state investment
board is to ask their money managers who have these scrutinized, direct holdings. The
reports would come to the board and they would look at the scrutinized list and then moves
that list forward to their managers. There is a nice timeframe in here thatlays it out so that
they have plenty of time to deal with these. They are not immediate removals. With that
you are not looking at the losses with the transfers. There are 90 day time frames that
keep flowing out and it turns into about an 18 month process. You should not see that
faltering of that type of thing. On the last page where it talks about exemption from legal
obligations, the state board of investment is exempt from any statutory or common law
obligations that conflict with any actions required under this chapter including any good
faith determination regarding a company and/or obligations regarded the choice of the

asset managers or investment funds in other investments. Throughout this process the
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state board of investment would be held harmless throughout that process to possible
lawsuit. Thatis not what this is trying to promote.

(9:44) Chairman Dever: Could you explain to me Subsection 21-13-10, | see it was added
as the amendment in the house?

Representative Grande: | do not know what they amended. | believe Sparb Collins
brought that in on that side after | had left. We are trying to narrow down the ability of that
lawsuit. We have exclusive things that we need to do. They can explain why they have
exclusives; that part | do not understand. This does expire when Iran comes about and
understands what the rest of the world is asking of them. | want to be clear about is that
this piece of legislation comes off of federal public law. We are not dealing with social
issues here; we are dealing with a dangerous nation that has killed and helped participate
in killing our people. Our soldiers on the ground in Iraq and Afghanistan were killed by
IED's made by this country. These are not our friends and they need to be made noted by
all states with the guidance of the federal government saying that we are not going to
participate in helping them fund the killing of our soldiers.

Chairman Dever: Does that federal law apply to state investments?

Representative Grande: The federal law is when they take the public law, the federal
government divests their holdings from that and then they request in the next portion that
the states do the same.

Chairman Dever: It is your understanding that some states have successfully completed
that divestiture.

Representative Grande: Many states have. | do know that Minnesota, South Dakota,
Florida, California, and Indiana are the ones that come to the forefront. | can get that list for

you.
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Chairman Dever: They have made a list of the companies that they have divested from.
Representative Grande: Correct.

Chairman Dever: If we follow that list, could we accomplish what you are seeking to
accomplish?

Representative Grande: It should come very close.

(13:55) Darren Schulz, Interim Chief Investment Officer for the North Dakota
Retirement and Investment Office and North Dakota State Investment Board: See
Attachment #1 for testimony in opposition to the bill.

(31:45) Senator Nelson: There are a lot of mutual funds out there that are a composite of
a lot of stuff and looking at those lists of 300 plus; if you were to divest everything dealing
with Iran, what would be left in the New York stock exchange?

Darren Schulz: It is comprehensive and far reaching implications if we were forced to
implement this bill. The administrative burden is significant. We would be required to
perform fiduciary analysis on each and every one of these holdings to determine whether
divestment would impair diversification for our client portfolios. That is a significant burden
on staff.

Chairman Dever: Representative Grande mentioned federal law; is it safe for me to
assume that these companies are not excluded from those investments?

Darren Schulz: The Iran act applies to companies that have direct and indirect ties to Iran.
It is not a matter of simply the 14 companies on the maintained sanction list. It is really the
only list of scrutinized companies that have born sanctions. This applies to companies that
may be liable to. Itis far reaching in determining who has ties. It is really something that
we would have to hire a consulting service to determine. If you look at each of that states

that maintain list, they are all different. (Gives an example) | make the point that these
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larger plans do have internal investment management to perform that fiduciary analysis to
determine what the impact might be from divestment.

Senator Marcellais: The bottom line is what would it cost the state if we pass this bill?
Darren Schulz: There is a fiscal note in which we have listed the cost of the additional FTE
as well as the operating cost. In terms of the explicit cost, we have in the fiscal note for the
2013-2015 biennium the expenditures for the state fiscal impact as well as the city
pensions in which we manage. When we get into the transaction costs, it is really a huge
unknown because of really having to do that fiduciary analysis in order to comply with the
exclusive benefit rule on behalf of our retirement system clients.

Vice Chairman Berry: We heard that other states have done this and that there are lists
out there; is there not a good guideline to go by out there?

Darren Schulz: Each state has written their bills differently. Some have targeted
specifically the petroleum and natural gas sector. Some have exemptions. It has forced
them each individually develop a scrutinized list based on the specifics of their law. We
have a bill before us that there are exemptions for companies that have ties to retail
gasoline and related products. There are humanitarian exemptions. We would need to
retain an external vendor to develop our list.

Vice Chairman Berry: My understanding is that the federal act does not require the states
to do anything, however, it indemnifies them if they choose to do so based on the rules that
you mentioned, is that correct?

Darren Schulz: The exemption applies to fiduciaries that wish to adopt social criteria that
do not violate the exclusive benefit rule, but it does not provide protection for any

impairment that may occur to diversification under federal law.
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Vice Chairman Berry: You are saying that it may force you do things that you do not have
protection for?

Darren Schulz: Yes, the indemnification is not all encompassing. [f there were a fiduciary
breech that results from a significant divestment program that impairs the diversification
benefits of the plan, there would be no protections.

Vice Chairman Berry: Has this been a problem in these other state and have there been
lawsuits to this effect?

Darren Schulz: | am not aware of specific litigation that has occurred. | have not done any
studies to determine that. | have mainly studied the implementation costs of a divestment
bill. There is a wide range of different impacts in the other states. (Gives a few figures)
Vice Chairman Berry: Do you have any knowledge on how much fiscal impact this has on
the Iranian government? Is it felt that this going to make a significant impact?

Darren Schulz: | have read academic studies that cast an unfavorable light on the impact
of the divestment bills historically. They basically say at the end of the day that there will
be little impact and | would argue that it is ineffective.

Chairman Dever: Would it be safe for me to assume that companies that are prevented by
sanction from doing business with Iran are associated with things like military armaments
and those kinds of things?

Darren Schulz: The 14 companies are emerging market, private companies that are
primarily in the petroleum sector.

Chairman Dever: If we applied this to Iran, aren’t there others that we should apply it to?
Darren Schulz: State sponsored terrorism is not confined to Iran. You could include other
countries as well.

Chairman Dever: | believe that the biggest importer of our refined gasoline is Iran.
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(44:15) Fay Kopp, Interim Executive Director, North Dakota Retirement and
Investment Office: See Attachment #2 for testimony in opposition to the bill representing
TFFR.

(47:55) Chairman Dever: | agree with the intent of the bill. Do you feel there is a way to
amend the bill to narrow its focus in order to preserve that intent?

Fay Kopp: There was an amendment in the house that would allow for the fact that
divestment would only occur if the exclusive benefit rule was met. That was an amendment
intended to preserve the idea of this, but the fact remains is that there is still going to be a
cost even with the amendment and divestment doesn’t occur. | would rather have state
investment board staff working to make sure that they can minimize risk and maximize
returns of the pension plan for the benefit as opposed to trying to analyze whether or not
particular investments are meeting the exclusive benefit rule in order to determine whether
they should be divested or not. | am afraid that there is a conflict there. | believe it would
be difficult to amend the bill to keep the intent without requiring the costs. If there are
divestment costs, they certainly could be significant. If divestment doesn’t take place, then
you have a bill on the books that isn't doing what it was intended to do. | am aware that
there are some states that have a similar law on the books, but because of the exclusive
benefit rule, they find that they can't really implement it because of the costs.

(49:57) Kelly Schmidt, State Treasurer: See Attachment #3 for testimony in opposition to
the bill.

(56:15) Chairman Dever: | am curious if the investment board has a policy that would
address this kind of investment?

Kelly Schmidt: | think our stance in opposing this bill speaks on behalf of the board and

how we feel about the role of divesting.



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
HB 1304

03/07/2013

Page 9

Chairman Dever: Otherwise, is there a general philosophy that says that we are not going
to invest in certain kinds of companies that do things we don’t agree with?

Kelly Schmidt: We do not have a social divesting policy today.

Vice Chairman Berry: (reads from page 2 of testimony) Of all of the things | have heard
this morning, that seems to make the most sense. There is no way we know what is going
on behind those doors internationally. It would seem to me that the federal government
should be putting forth that guidance on which companies that we should divest from.
Kelly Schmidt: | believe the lists are ever moving and a company could come and go from
the list and if we do not catch it, at what time table do we address it and are we going to be
held responsible for it. There is not a lot of guidance from the federal government on this
issue.

Vice Chairman Berry: Has anyone pushed them for more guidance?

Kelly Schmidt: | believe there is a lot of push in Washington on a lot of issues and this is
just one of many.

Chairman Dever: Closed hearing on HB 1304.
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Minutes:

Chairman Dever: Opened HB 1304 for committee discussion.

Senator Cook: Moved a Do Not Pass.

Senator Poolman: Seconded.

Chairman Dever: | was a co-sponsor on the bill so | will support the bill only to suggest
that another bill in the next session with a more narrow focus and it might find a different
reception.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent.

Senator Cook: Carrier.
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Minutes:

Chairman Dever: Opened HB 1304 for committee discussion. (Asked Representative
Grande to answer a few questions of the committee)

Representative Grande: | went through the fiscal note and | had an opportunity to visit
with Mr. Schultz and | talked to legislative council and he has not gotten back to me to
change the fiscal note but he was aware of that. Mr. Schultz thought the bill did not
address petroleum and IED's. He thought it was bigger and broader than that. So | asked
council and they have stated that it is the understanding that HB 1304 which is limited as
this applies to the development production and export of refined petroleum resources. The
definition in the bill of Iran Sanctions Act 1996 is with respect to scrutinized business
operations. It goes on to say that it is strictly there and you duly note that the exemptions
are in the bill where we don’t have to worry about it affecting humane goods and that this
really goes towards the stopping of IED's and the development of mass destruction. When
| explained that to Darren, he said that if we were aware of that, we would be able to adjust
that. So | went back and in looking at their fiscal note and if you go back to the last lines of
the fiscal note, section C, an FTE has already been put in place and they are going to
utilize the person that is already there. That FTE will use a quarter of their time to apply it

to this bill. They were applying it to this bill when they thought they were doing social
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investment issues. They are not doing those. | have contacted the DCRC who works on
this in every state in the nation and there has yet to be a money manager that has charged
or that they have had to hire someone separate. It is the job of the money managers to tell
them who is in their portfolios that need to be divested from. | don’'t know where the
confusion comes with.

(3:23)Chairman Dever: Would it be your expectation that we probably don’t have any
holdings that would need to be divested?

Representative Grande: According to his testimony it appears that we don'’t.

Senator Cook: You are saying that if the bill is out of here with a do not pass, that we can
reconsider the bill and the fiscal note would get changed - then the bill can pass the bill out
as is?

Representative Grande: Correct; according to legislative council. That is how the bill was
drafted and that was the intent of the bill and that is how it is read. | think the difficulty
comes in that Iran sanction is very thick but it is very specific to petroleum and unless you
go back and read that, you don’t understand those words inside the bill.

Senator Cook: Don'’t you think that we should have some concern of a bill that is such that
people might read it and come to different conclusions on what it says?

Representative Grande: | can have legislative council draft the amendments that utilizes
the words "development, production, and exportation of refined petroleum resources" to
limit it down to that?

Chairman Dever: The bill right now has a Do Not Pass recommendation which means it
does not need to go to appropriations. If we amend it to remove the fiscal note it still does

not go to appropriations. So, | don’t know that we are necessarily subject to today's
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deadline which would mean that we can do what needs to be done and come back with it
next Thursday.

Representative Grande: That sounds good.

Chairman Dever: Unless the committee sees it otherwise. | think the real concern was the
expense of going through and determining where they would need to divest.
Representative Grande: They would need that employee to take the quarter time to do
that.

Chairman Dever: | think that most of us agree with the intent of this. It is just a matter of
how onerous itis. You are suggesting it is not and they are suggesting it is.
Representative Grande: | know we have never looked into something like this and other
states have done it enough that they were not intimidated by the ideas. | have also asked
that maybe Mr. Schultz visit with South Dakota because our plans are very similar.
Committee Discussion: The committee briefly discussed page 2, line 6 and decided to
wait and see if an amendment comes to the committee or the bill will stay with the "do not
pass" already voted on.

Chairman Dever: Closed the committee discussion.



FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/28/2013

Amendment to: HB 1304

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $90,888 $0 $96,212
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

subdivision.
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
Counties $0 $0
Cities $0 $2,272 $2,405
School Districts $0 $0 $0
Townships $0 $0 $0

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief sumhvary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (fimited to 300 characters).

In order to comply with the language in HB1304, the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise
in identifying these companies and internal staff resources to perform the on-going analysis and reporting at both the
board and legislative levels.

. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

HB1304 would require the State Investment Board (SIB) to follow specific procedures for identifying, analyzing,
engaging, monitoring and divesting in companies subject or liable to sanctions. In order to identify these companies,
the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise in this area. The estimated cost of this type of
consulting relationship is $10,000+ per year. Additionally, once the companies are identified, internal staff time would
be required to provide analysis of the companies reported by the consultant to the SIB, engage these companies
directly, monitor and analyze the responses received from these companies, provide reports to the SIB and
legislative management, and supervise the divestment process to ensure transaction costs are minimized. Based on
information received from other states’ investment offices, it is estimated that approximately 25% of an FTE's time
would be required to ensure compliance with this bill. The House Appropriations Committee has approved an
additional FTE for an Investment Analyst within the RIO appropriation bill (HB1022). With the addition of this
position, no further FTEs are being requested specifically for HB1304, however, 25% of the cost of this position is
being considered a cost of this bill. In the fiscal note submitted to the House Government and Veterans Affair
Committee on the original version of HB1304, it was estimated that approximately 7.5% of the aggregate public
equity portfolio and 1% of the aggregate fixed income portfolio may be subject to divestment, resulting in transaction
costs of $1.9 million from selling the scrutinized companies and purchasing replacement securities. With the
approval of the amendment to House Bill 1304, however, which would require the state investment board to apply
the exclusive benefit rule to any public employees retirement system fund created by the laws of this state, we are
unable to make any reliable estimate of transaction costs given the uncertainty surrounding divestment activity
needed to comply with the bill to the extent that it does not result in a breach of the exclusive benefit rule. As with
any divestment program, a great deal rides on the fiduciary analysis of offending securities to assess the potential
costs, market impact and potential to affect risk and return associated with divestment.



3. State fiscal effect detail: Forinformation shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide détéil, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

N/A

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Expenditures for this bill include 25% of one FTE estimated to be $66,349 for the 2013-15 biennium and $72,889 for
the 2015-17 biennium, plus 25% of the associated operating costs for that position of $4,539 for the 2013-15
biennium and $2,323 for the 2015-17 biennium. A consultant would also be required to assistin developing and
maintaining the list of scrutinized companies. The cost of this service is estimated at $20,000 for the 2013-15
biennium and $21,000 for the 2015-17 biennium. With the approval of the amendment to House Bill 1304, however,
which would require the state investment board to apply the exclusive benefit rule to any public employees
retirement system fund created by the laws of this state, we are unable to make any reliable estimate of transaction
costs given the uncertainty surrounding divestment activity needed to comply with the bill to the extent that it does
not result in a breach of the exclusive benefit rule. Without an amendment for the non-pension funds, we expect
there will still be costs to those funds for divestment and there may still be costs for the pension funds if the
divestment meets the exclusive benefit rule.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.

An FTE for an Investment Analyst was approved and included in the RIO appropriation bill (HB1022), therefore no
additional appropriation authority would be required in HB1304. The consulting expenses and any resulting
investment transaction costs are covered under continuing appropriation per NDCC 21-10-06.2.

Name: Connie Flanagan
Agency: Retirement & Investment Office
Telephone: 328-9892 ‘
Date Prepared: 03/06/2013



FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/01/2013

Revised
Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1304

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding

levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues $0 $0 Lo $0 $0 ' $0 $0
Expenditures $0 $0 ) $0 $2,203,553 $0 $321,846
Appropriations $0 $0 . $0 $283,553 $0 $300,846

subdivision.
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
Counties $0( . $0 $0
Cities $0| - $55,000 $8,050
School Districts $0 $0 $0
Townships : $0 $0 $0

. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

In order to comply with the Ianguage in HB1304, the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise
in identifying these companies and internal staff resources to perform the on-going analysis and reporting at both the
board and legislative levels.

. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description.of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

HB1304 would require the State Investment Board (SIB) to follow specific procedures for identifying, analyzing,
engaging, monitoring and divesting in companies subject or liable to sanctions. In order to identify these companies,
the SIB would require assistance from a consultant with expertise in this area. The estimated cost of this type of
consulting relationship is $10,000+ per year. Per NDCC 21-10-06.2, this expenditure would fall under continuing
appropriation authority. Additionally, once the companies are identified, internal staff time would be required to
provide analysis of the companies reported by the consultant to the SIB, engage these companies directly, monitor
and analyze the responses received from these companies, provide reports to the SIB and legislative management,
and supervise the divestment process to ensure transaction costs are minimized. Based on information received
from other states’ investment offices, it is estimated that up to 25% of an FTE's time would be required to ensure
compliance with this bill. The SIB has recently discussed the anticipated need for additional staff for the investment
program at RIO. Testimony provided on HB1022 (RIO budget bill) to the House Appropriations-Government
Operations Committee on January 16, 2013, included discussion regarding this anticipated need in the near future,
based on the significant growth of the Legacy Fund in addition to the overall growth of the assets under
management (AUM) of the SIB. The SIB program appropriation request currently funds 5.75 FTEs responsible for
current AUM of just over $6 billion. Estimates indicate AUM to be over $8 billion by the end of the 2013-15 biennium.
RIO did not request an additional FTE in the budget request in HB1022, preferring to wait until the vacant Executive
Director/CIO position is filled, but if HB1304 were passéd, the current 5.75 FTEs would not have the capacity to
absorb the additional responsibilities as described. Unfortunately, the requirements within HB1304 to meet certain
deadlines would not provide the luxury of waiting to assess staffing needs until that time. RIO would therefore
request an additional FTE to provide the necessary staff to properly implement HB1304 as well as to provide
support for the anticipated growth in AUM over the next biennium. Estimated salary and benefits for this position are
$265,400 for the 2015-17 biennium and $291,500 for the 2015-17 biennium. Estimated additional operating
expenses for this position are approximately $18,200 for the 2015-17 biennium and $9,300 for the 2015-17
biennium. Additional costs: There are no pre-established screening criteria or industry lists that fully comply with this



bill's language. The development of a customized analysis was not possible within the timelines established for this
fiscal note’s completion, so RIO relied upon a survey of other state retirement plans that restrict investment in
companies with Iranian ties with exceptions for humanitarian providers. Accordingly, additional companies could
meet the parameters set forth in this bill. Transactions costs of divestment cannot be estimated with precision given
the uncertainty surrounding divestment activity needed to comply with HB 1304. Most SIB clients invest a large
portion of their assets in equity markets, and in international securities, which would likely be most impacted by the
divestment bill. Based on a survey of other state retirement plans, approximately 7.5% of the public equity portfolio
and 1% of the fixed income portfolio may be subject to divestment. Using a midpoint of transaction costs provided
by California, Florida and Ohio pension officials, the transaction:costs for selling the scrutinized companies and
purchasing replacement securities is estimated to be $1.9 million.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

While the variety of provisions in the divestment bills among various retirement systems make developing a rule of
thumb nearly impossible, estimates of lost mvestment earnings range from no lmpact to approximately 30 basis
points per annum.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, foreach agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300; 846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321,846 :

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide détail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts.shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.

Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2013-15 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $283,553 (See detail attached) Outside
Consulting Service(continuing appropriation)$20,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $303,553 As per 2B
above - there are additional transaction and opportunity costs that are difficult to estimate. An additional $1.9 million
in continuing appropriation for these types of costs are used for estimation purposes. Dept. 190/Fund 207 - 2015-
175 Biennium Total Appropriated Expenditures $300,846(See detail attached) Outside Consulting Service(continuing
appropriation)$21,000 Total Expenditures 2013-15 Biennium $321 846
Name: Connie Flanagan

Agency: Retirement and Investment s

Telephone: 328-9892

Date Prepared: 02/06/2013



Fiscal Impact of HB 1304
Department 190/Fund 207

Outside Consulting Services

Salary (1 additional FTE)
Benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits Appropriation

Operating

Telecom

ITD Data Processing

Travel

Software

Professional Development
Operating Fees (advertising)
Office Supplies

IT Equipment <$5000

Other Equipment <$5000
Total Operating Appropriation

'
o

Total Appropriated Expenditures Dept. 190/Fund 207
Total Continuing Appropriation Expenditures

Total Expenditures

IR

Est. investment transaction costs related to divestiture

2013-15

2015-17

Biennium Biennium
20,000.00 . 21,000.00
205,000.00 226,012.50
60,395.87 65,543.63
265,395.87 291,5656.13
960.00 988.80
2,547.00 2,651.22
. 4,000.00 4,200.00

600.00 .
1,000.00 1,000.00
300.00 300.00
150.00 150.00

2,650.00 -

5,950.00 -
18,157.00 9,290.02
283,552.87 300,846.15
20,000.00 21,000.00
303,552.87 321,846.15

1,900,000.00
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TESTIMONY OF SPARB COLLINS
HOUSE BILL 1304

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, good morning my name is Sparb Collins and
| am the Executive Director of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS). Today | appear before you in opposition to this bill because it supersedes the
existing requirements in state